
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

(AMENDED) 
June 22, 2015 

5:00 PM 
 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Robin Morgan, Morgan Properties 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 
8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 
9. Approval of Minutes – May 23, 2015 (Work Session) and June 8, 2015 (Regular 

Meeting)  

Old Business  

10. Resolution Number 4723 – Annexation – 2308, 2312, and 2320 Rocky Ridge Road; Carl 
Schafer, Owner, Dan Sims, Taylor Burton, representing  (public hearing) 

11. Ordinance Number 2571 – Conditional Use approval for a home occupation at 4755 
Liberty Park Lane; Timothy and Robin York, Owners  (public hearing) 

12. Ordinance Number 2572 – Conditional Use approval for an automobile dealership at 
1475 Montgomery Highway; Michael Schefano, Hollywood Imports, owner  (public 
hearing) 

New Business  

13. Resolution Number 4726 – A Resolution Declaring A Weed And Other Vegetation 
Nuisance Pursuant To Ordinance Number 2567 And Directing The City Manager To 
Abate Said Nuisance For The Property Located At 2130 Cedarbark Lane (public hearing) 

14. Resolution Number 4729- A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With ALDOT For Jefferson County Project Number 
ACAA59595-ATRP(006); Resurfacing Various Eligible Roads/Streets In Jefferson 
County 



New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

15. Resolution Number 4728 – A Resolution Declaring An Emergency And Authorizing The 
City Manager To Execute And Deliver Agreements For Construction Cost, Professional 
Services And Utility Relocation For A Proposed Road Project Adjacent To The Vestavia 
Hills Cahaba Heights Elementary School (public hearing) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

16. Resolution Number 4725 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 
Radio Equipment From E-911 Funds (public hearing) 

17. Resolution Number 4727 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase A 
Drying Cabinet and Workstation (public hearing) 

18. Citizens Comments  
19. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 

Work Session 

Page 1 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

MAY 23, 2015 
 

 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a work session on this date at 7:00 AM 

following posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the work 

session to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 

George Pierce 

      John Henley  

Jim Sharp 

 

 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Rebecca Leavings City Clerk 

      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 

      Dan Rary, Police Chief 

 

 The Mayor called the work session to order and gave updates on the following: 

 Legislation concerning warrant recall, the tag modification bill and the 

proposed entertainment districts. 

 

 Mr.  Downes gave updates on all of the projects around the City, including: 

 

 Additional parking at the Library; 

 Patchwork developments; 

 Altadena Valley Country Club due diligence; and 

 Parks and Recreation programming study/survey. 

 

 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:15 AM. 

 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

3



City Council Minutes 

Work Session 

Page 2 

 

Attested by: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

4



City Council Minutes 

June 8, 2015 

Page 1 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

MINUTES 

 

JUNE 8, 2015 
 

 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  

The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 

following: 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 

George Pierce  

      John Henley 

      Jim Sharp* 

 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 

      Jeff Downes, City Manager 

      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 

      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 

      Danny Rary, Police Chief 

      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 

      Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief 

      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 

      Lori Beth Kearley, Asst. City Engineer 

       *arrived at 6:35 PM 

 

 

 Invocation was given by Dan Rary, Police Chief, followed by the Pledge of 

Allegiance.   

 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 

 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Scott Perry and Michael Giardina, Vestavia Hills Chamber 

of Commerce, to the meeting. 

 Mr. Henley welcomed Sheila Phillips, Superintendent of the Vestavia Hills Board 

of Education. 

 The Mayor announced that Resolution Number 4718 has been withdrawn from 

the agenda and that two additional items were put onto the agenda under the “First 

Read.” 

 

5



City Council Minutes 

June 8, 2015 

Page 2 

 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that the City will open two public works bids next week:  an 

ADA ramp at the Library in the Forest and a road located adjacent to Vestavia 

Hills Elementary School - Cahaba Heights. 

 The new parking lot at the Library in the Forest just opened today. 

 On Wednesday, June 10, Mr. Boone will close on the properties located in 

Meadowlawn Estates which are the homes that were part of the buyout to create a 

new City park. 

 The City is sponsoring a photograph contest to celebrate the “Life Above” 

branding initiative and the opening of the new City Hall facility.  He stated that 

August 14 is the close of the contest and prize money was obtained from tourism 

grants.  Rules and regulations for the contest can be found on the City’s website. 

 

 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 

 

 Mr. Pierce announced that I Love America Day will begin on July 1.  He asked 

everyone to save the date. 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

 The minutes of Approval of Minutes of May 28, 2014 (Regular Meeting) were 

presented for approval.   

 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of May 28, 2014 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 

second by Mr. Ammons.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        motion carried. 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4716 

 

Resolution Number 4716  - Annexation – 90-Day – Altadena Valley Country Club 

property located in Jefferson and Shelby Counties adjacent to Acton 

Road  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4716 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 

 

6



City Council Minutes 

June 8, 2015 

Page 3 

 

 Mr. Pierce gave a report from the Annexation Committee regarding this property.  

He stated that the location is along Acton Road and is located in both Jefferson and 

Shelby Counties.  The Committee studied the request and found no adverse information. 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this is a request to begin the 90-day annexation of this 

property.  He indicated the request from the developers involves a residential subdivision, 

a small commercial area and the opportunity to donate some acreage to the City for use as 

parks and/or recreational fields.  He explained the progress of the due diligence so far and 

indicated that both the City and the developer are in the midst of studying the property to 

see what the highest and best use will be and no plans are available yet concerning the 

property.  He indicated that beginning tonight the annexation would allow for a Planning 

and Zoning hearing on August 13 where plans can be shown for a recommendation.  If 

this remains on schedule, the zoning and annexation hearings should culminate on 

September 28, 2015 in anticipation of an October 1 closing. 

 

 Mr. Henley stated that if the zoning is not approved by the Council, the existing 

annexation contract is void. 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that is correct. 

 

 The Mayor reemphasized that plans are not finalized for any of the property yet.  

This is the beginning step of annexation and other public hearings will follow with the 

opportunity to view plans at that time. 

 

 Mr. Boone gave a detail of the annexation and rezoning procedure pursuant to 

Alabama law. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 

the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 

question. 

 

Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        motion carried. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4718 

 

Resolution Number 4718 – Alcohol License – Turner Food Systems, LLC D/B/A 

Turner Food Systems, For A 150 – Special Events Retail License At 

4700 Sicard Hollow Road; Donna And Trenton Turner, Executives 

 

 This request was withdrawn by the applicant. 

7



City Council Minutes 

June 8, 2015 

Page 4 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4719 

 

Resolution Number 4719 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 

To Execute And Deliver An Agreement With ALDOT For Jefferson 

County Project Number STPBH-3715(242); Resurfacing Various 

Eligible Roads/Streets In Jefferson County 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4719 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Ammons. 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that this is a maintenance agreement for an ALDOT project to 

resurface a portion of Columbiana Road from Gentilly Drive into Homewood to the 

bridge.  He stated that there is no cost to the City, just the maintenance of the existing 

infrastructure. 

 

 Mr. Boone indicated he has reviewed the agreement and sees no problems with 

the approval. 

 

Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        motion carried. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4720 

 

Resolution Number 4720 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As 

Surplus And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4720 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution declares an older Crown Victoria and an 

old police speed trailer as surplus to allow for sale of said items. 

 

Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        motion carried. 

 

 

 

 

 

8



City Council Minutes 

June 8, 2015 

Page 5 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4724 

 

Resolution Number 4724 – A Resolution Granting A Power Easement Adjacent To 

Vestavia Hills Elementary School-Cahaba Heights 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4724 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution allows for relocation of some power poles 

in anticipation of the City building a road adjacent to the Vestavia Hills Elementary 

School - Cahaba Heights and some work the Board of Education will be doing adjacent 

to the New Merkle House. 

 

Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        motion carried. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 

 

UNANIMOUS CONSENT 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate 

consideration and action on Ordinance Number 2570, Resolution Number 4721 and 

Resolution Number 4722. 

 

MOTION Motion for Unanimous Consent for immediate consideration and action of 

Ordinance Number 2570, Resolution Number 4721 and Resolution 

Number 4722 was by Mr. Henley and second was by Mr. Ammons.  Roll 

call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        motion carried. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2570 

 

Ordinance Number 2570 - An Ordinance Finding And Determining That Real 

Property Being Vacant Property Situated At 2253 Great Rock Road, 

Is Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purpose And To Authorize 

And Direct The City Manager To Execute And Deliver An Agreement 

For The Exclusive Listing To Sell Said Property  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2570 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 

9



City Council Minutes 

June 8, 2015 

Page 6 

 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that this request will allow the City to sale some property 

located on Great Rock Road which was previously a residence that the City had to tear 

down due to an abatement order.  This also allows him to list the property exclusively 

with a realtor in order to sell it. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   

 

 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked about the proceeds from the sale of the 

property. 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that the proceeds would go toward already expended cost 

of razing the structure, legal fees involved and indicated any funding that might be left 

over would go into Capital Reserve. 

 

 There being no one to address the Council concerning this request, the Mayor 

closed the floor and asked for the question. 

 

Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        motion carried. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4721 

 

Resolution Number 4721 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver First Amendment To Sales Contract For Property On 

Old Columbiana Road   (public hearing) 

 

 The Mayor asked that this item be tabled until after the executive session. 

 

MOTION Motion to table Resolution Number 4721 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Ammons. 

 

The Mayor called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        motion carried. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4722 

 

Resolution Number 4722 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver A “Conditional Consent To Encroachment And Release 

Of Damages” With Jefferson County  (public hearing) 

10



City Council Minutes 

June 8, 2015 

Page 7 

 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4722 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that this consent is required by Jefferson County 

Environmental Services in order to subdivide the City Hall/Vestavia Hills “Bill F. 

Towers” Fire Station No. 1 into separate lots.  The fire station was apparently built close 

to a sewer pipe and the County is requiring this release in order to approve the map. 

 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 

the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 

question. 

 

Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        motion carried. 

 

 

FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 

 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 

presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on June 

22, 2015 at 5 PM. 

 Resolution Number 4723 – Annexation – 2308, 2312, and 2320 Rocky Ridge 

Road; Carl Schafer, Owner, Dan Sims, Taylor Burton, representing  (public 

hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2571 – Conditional Use approval for a home occupation at 

4755 Liberty Park Lane; Timothy and Robin York, Owners  (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2572 – Conditional Use approval for an automobile 

dealership at 1475 Montgomery Highway; Michael Schefano, Hollywood 

Imports, owner  (public hearing) 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 

 None. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 The Mayor stated that the Council needed to move into executive session for an 

estimated 85 minutes for the sale/purchase of property and that Resolution Number 4721 

11



City Council Minutes 

June 8, 2015 

Page 8 

 

would be considered immediately following the session.  He opened the floor for a 

motion. 

 

MOTION Motion to move into executive session for an estimated 85 minutes for the 

purchase/sale of real estate was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. 

Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        motion carried. 

 

 The Council exited the Chamber at 6:30 PM and entered into executive session.  

Mr. Sharp arrived at 6:35 and joined the Council in Executive Session.  At 6:45 PM, the 

Council adjourned from executive session and entered into the Chamber.  The Mayor 

called the meeting back to order. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4721 

 

Resolution Number 4721 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver First Amendment To Sales Contract For Property On 

Old Columbiana Road   (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4721 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that this allows the City the option to continue a contract on 

some property located on Old Columbiana Road. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 

the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 

question. 

 

Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 

   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 

 

 

MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Henley and second was by Mr. Pierce.  

Meeting adjourned at 6:50 PM. 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

12



City Council Minutes 

June 8, 2015 

Page 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

13



Resolution Number 4723 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4723 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated February 25, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 8th day of June, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 24th day of June, 2015. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of September, 2015, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

14



Resolution Number 4723 
Page 2 

 
petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4723 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2308, 2312 & 2320 Rocky Ridge Road 
Wisteria II, LLC, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Parcel I.  A parcel of land located in Jefferson County, Alabama part of the SE 
1/4 of Section 6, Township 19 South, Range 2 West, said Jefferson County and 
being more particularly described as follows: 

Begin at the SE corner of Lot 1-A, Block 8, of Hidden Valley 2nd Sector, as 
recorded in Map Book 63, Page 67, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of 
Jefferson County, Alabama; thence North along the East line of said Block 8, 
661.40 feet; thence 92 degrees 28 minutes 02 seconds right, in an Easterly 
direction along the Southerly line of Block 2 in the Second Sector of Derby 
Downs East Sector, as recorded in Map Book 78, Page 42 in said Probate Office 
and the extension thereof, a distance of 658.67 feet; thence 87 degrees 34 minutes 
09 seconds right in a Southerly direction, a distance of 125.02 feet; thence 81 
degrees 51 minutes 09 seconds left, Southeasterly 235.87 feet to a point in the 
Northwesterly right of way line of Rocky Ridge Road; thence 94 degrees 41 
minutes 06 seconds right, Southwesterly along said right of way line a distance of 
524.24 feet to the intersection with the Northerly right of way line of Wisteria 
Drive; thence 79 degrees 50 minutes 18 seconds right, Westerly along said right 
of way line a distance of 775.56 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Parcel II.  A parcel of land located in Jefferson County, Alabama and lying in the 
Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 6, Township 19 South, 

15



Resolution Number 4723 
Page 3 

 
Range 2 West, said Jefferson County and being more particularly described as 
follows: 

Beginning at a 3" capped pipe found marking the Southwest Corner of the 
Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of said 
Section 6; thence S 88°53'26" E for a distance of 267.95 feet to a 5/8" capped 
rebar set (SMW LS 19753); thence along the westerly right-of-way of Rocky 
Ridge Road with a curve to the left having an arc length of 33.41 feet, a radius of 
985.31 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of S 12°30'03" W for 33.40 feet to a 
5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); thence S 11°31’47" W along said 
westerly right-of-way line for a distance of 117.67 feet to a capped iron pin found 
(CA-81-LS); thence leaving said westerly right-of-way line N 83°09'31" W for a 
distance of 235.97 feet to a 1/2" open top pipe found; thence N 01°18'45" W for a 
distance of 125.02 feet to the Point of Beginning. Said Described parcel of land 
contains 0.79 acres, more or less. 

Parcel III.  A parcel of land located in Jefferson County, Alabama and lying in the 
Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 6, Township 19 South, 
Range 2 West, said Jefferson County and being more particularly described as 
follows: 

Beginning at a 3" capped pipe found marking the Southwest Corner of the 
Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of said 
Section 6; thence N 01°23'01" W along the westerly line of said Quarter-Quarter-
Quarter for a distance of 354.66 feet to a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); 
thence leaving said westerly line and run along the southerly line of the lands of 
the City of Vestavia Hills as described and recorded in Deed Book 200509, Page 
8409 the following courses and distances: S 48°10'26" E for a distance of 190.78 
feet to a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); along a curve to the left having 
an arc length of 45.90 feet, a radius of 28.00 feet, and a chord bearing and distance 
of N 84°52'00" E for 40.93 feet to a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); N 
37°54'26" E for a distance of 150.60 feet to a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 
19753); along a curve to the right having an arc length of 266.97 feet, a radius of 
260.70 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of N 67°14'39" E for 255.46 feet to 
a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753) on the northwesterly right-of-way line 
of Rocky Ridge Road; thence leaving said southerly line along said northwesterly 
right-of-way line with a curve to the left having an arc length of 142.77 feet, a 
radius of 995.31 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of S 39°15'06" W for 
142.65 feet to a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); thence along said 
northwesterly right-of-way line S 54°51'28" E for a distance of 10.00 feet to a 5/8" 

16



Resolution Number 4723 
Page 4 

 
capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); thence along said northwesterly right-of-way 
line with a curve to the left having an arc length of 372.66 feet, a radius of 985.31 
feet, and a chord bearing and distance of S 24°18'26" W for 370.44 feet to a 5/8" 
capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); thence leaving said northwesterly right-of-
way line N 88°53'26" W for a distance of 267.95 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
Said described parcel of land contains 2.62 acres, more or less. 
 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

17



-i:

\ Vestavla Hills
\ Jefferson County
| Mountain Brook
| Jeffco&Bham18



19



20



Resolution Number 3824

Page 6

STATE OF ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

PETITION FOR ANNEXATION TO THE

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA

Date of Petition: February 25, 2015

To the Honorable MayorandCity Council of the Cityof Vestavia Hills, Alabama:

We, the undersigned owners of the properties set out in red outline in Exhibit "A" attached
hereto, which properties are contiguous to the City limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama,
under the authority of Act No. 32 of the Special Session of the Alabama Legislature of 1964, do
hereby petitionthe City ofVestavia Hills,Alabama, that the properties set out in red
outline in Exhibit "A" attached, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, be annexed
to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. The metes and bounds description of the boundary of the
property of the undersigned proposed to be annexed is also set out on said Exhibit "A" and a map
showing in red the property proposed for annexation by this petition is also attached and madea part
hereof.

The undersigned petitionersdo further petitionthat the Honorable Mayor and City Council of
the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, set a date for the hearing of this petition and any objections in
writing to the petition or protest, on a date certain and that no less than ninety (90) days before said
date certain for said hearing on this petition, that a notice of said hearing along with this petition be
publishedin a newspaperofgeneral circulation in Jefferson County,Alabama.

We, the undersigned petitioners do also ask that the Honorable Mayor and City Council of
the Cityof Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do all things necessary andrequisite to comply with the termsof
Act No. 32 of the SpecialSessionof the AlabamaLegislature of 1964. This petition for annexationto
the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama is made contingent upon the approval of residential zoning for
the property, as requested by the applicant and the applicant's designated representatives, by
Vestavia Hills.

21



LOT: (METES and BOUNDS)

BLOCK:

SURVEY:

EXHIBIT "A"

RECORDED IN MAP BOOK, PAGE

PROBATE OFFICE OF

JEFFERSON COUNTY,

ALABAMA

COUNTY ZONING: Agricultural

COMPATIBLE CITY ZONING: Agricultural

LEGAL DESCRIPTION(METES AND BOUNDS):

SEE ATTACHED DESCRIPTION FOR PARCELS:

40-00-06-4-002-034.000

40-00-06-4-002-035.000

40-00-06-4-002-036.000

TOTAL OF 15.8 ACRES +/-

Resolution Number 3824
Page!

22



ADDENDUM "A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS, METES & BOUNDS 15.8 acres +/-
Petition for Annexation to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama

Carl A. Schaefer ,Jr.

Parcel 1

Partof the SE1/4 of Section 6, Township 19 South, Range 2 West, more particularly
described as follows:

Begin at the SE corner of Lot 1-A, Block 8, of Hidden Valley 2nd Sector, as recorded in
Map Book 63, Page 67, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama;
thence North along the Eastline of said Block 8,661.40 feet: thence92 degrees 28 minutes
02 seconds right, in an Easterly direction along the Southerly line of Block 2 in the Second
Sector of Derby Downs East sector, as recorded in Map Book 78, Page 42 in said Probate
Office and the extension thereof, a distance of 658.67 feet; thence 87 degrees 34 minutes
09 seconds right in a Southerly direction, a distance of 125.02 feet; thence 81 degrees 51
minutes 09 seconds left, Southeasterly 235.87 feet to a point in the Northwesterly right of
way line of Rocky Ridge Road; thence 94 degrees 41 minutes 06 seconds right,
Southwesterly along said right of way line a distance of 524.24 feet to the intersection with
the Northerly right of way line ofWisteria Drive: thence 79 degrees 50 minutes 16 seconds
right, Westerly along said right of way line a distance of 775.56 feet to the Point of
Beginning.

Parcel 2

Begin at the NW corner of the S1/2 of the NE1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 6, Township
19, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama; thence run East 302 feet, more or less,
to center of paved highway; thence run Southwest along center of paved highway 150
feet; thence run West 268 feet, more or less, to the West line of said 1/41/4 Section;
thence run North 125 feet to the point of beginning; being a part of the NE 1/4 of SE
1/4 ofSection 6, Township 19 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama.

Less and except any portion of subject property lying within a road right of
way.

Parcel 3

All that part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6,
Township 19 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, that lies
North and West of Patton Chapel-Rocky Ridge Road and South of the center line
of a creek.

Less and except any portion of subject property lying within a road right of
way.

23



Cil i2015 Google -Map data $2015 Google Termaofltee Report amap erro<

24



Resolution Number 3824

Page?,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands and seals, or
caused these presents to be executed by their duly authorized representatives, with full authority.

SIGNATURE(S) DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

)U>*~Jl Q. LXvJs ^J\—A Lot Block Survey ,5^^ A-rtA-a-HLP -M&Tti 4WIW&S

Lot Block Survey

Lot Block Survey

(Use reverse side hereoffor additional signatures andproperty descriptions, ifneeded).

STATE OF ALABAMA

COUNTYJhu>
C^dY[ /{•. K^CAMJU^rOC ^Sf being duly sworn says: I am one ofthe persons who

signed the above petition, and I certify that said petition contains the signatures of all the owners
of the described property.

La* -U. 4X
Signature ofCertifier

J5m oF*4faU4A*jSubscribed and sworn before me this the ,20/*.

Notary/Public

My commission expires: ^vjj / »&

25



ADDENDUM "A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS, METES & BOUNDS 15.8 acres +/-
Petition for Annexation to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama

Carl A. Schaefer ,Jr.

Parcel 1

Part of the SE1/4 of Section 6,Township 19 South, Range 2West, more particularly
described as follows:

Begin at the SE corner of Lot 1-A, Block 8, of Hidden Valley 2nd Sector, as recorded in
Map Book 63, Page67, in the Officeof the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama;
thence North along the East line of said Blocks, 661.40 feet; thence 92 degrees 28 minutes
02 seconds right, in an Easterly direction along the Southerly line of Block 2 in the Second
Sector of Derby Downs East Sector, as recorded in Map Book 78, Page 42 in said Probate
Office and the extension thereof, a distance of 658.67 feet; thence 87 degrees 34 minutes
09 seconds right in a Southerly direction, a distance of 125.02 feet; thence 81 degrees 51
minutes 09 seconds left, Southeasterly 235.87 feet to a point in the Northwesterly right of
way line of Rocky Ridge Road; thence 94 degrees 41 minutes 06 seconds right,
Southwesterly along said right of way line a distance of 524.24 feet to the intersection with
the Northerly right of way line ofWisteria Drive: thence 79 degrees 50 minutes 16 seconds
right, Westerly along said right of way line a distance of 775.56 feet to the Point of
Beginning.

Parcel 2

Begin at the NW comer of the S1/2 of the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 6, Township
19, Range 2 West Jefferson County, Alabama; thence run East 302 feet more or less,
to center of paved highway; thence run Southwest along center of paved highway 150
feet thence run West 268 feet more or less, to the West line of said 1/41/4 Section;
thence run North 125 feet to the point of beginning; being a part of the NE 1/4 of SE
1/4 of Section 6, Township 19 South, Range 2 West Jefferson County, Alabama.

Less and except any portion of subject property lying within a road right of
way.

Parcel 3

All that part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6,
Township 19 South, Range 2 West situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, that lies
North and West of Patton Chapel-Rocky Ridge Road and South of the center line
of a creek.

Less and except any portion of subject property lying within a road right of
way.

26



EXHIBIT "B"

Resolution Number 3824
Page 9

VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION
1204 Montgomery Highway

Vestavia Hills AL 35216

(Tobe completed bytheCity)

Action Taken: Grant

Date:

Date:

Date:

Number:

Number:

Number:

Deny

Date ofAnnexation Petition

Resolution:

Overnight Ordinance:
90 Day Final Ordinance:

(To be completed by Homeowner)

Name(s) of Homeowners): Carl A. Schaefer, Jr.

Address: 345 Industrial Lane

City: Birmingham State: Alabama

Information on Children;

Zip: 35211

Plan to Enroll In

Vestavia Hills School?

Name(s) Age School Grade Yes No

1. NONE(This property is currently 15.8 acres +/- of
vacant land)

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Approximate date forenrolling students in Vestavia Hills City Schools if above response is
"yes"

27



28



Ordinance Number 2571 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2571 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL FOR A HOME OCCUPATION 

 
 WHEREAS, on October 16, 2000 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 1838 creating and establishing a 

P.U.D. (planned unit development) classification; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 19, 2001 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 1864 to rezone 3,350 +/- acres from multiple 

Jefferson County and Vestavia Hills zoning classifications to Vestavia Hills P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 709.5.A.1.b of Ordinance Number 1838 classifies a “home 

occupation” permitted only as a “Conditional Use” and 

 WHEREAS, Timothy and Robin York have submitted application for conditional 

use approval for a home occupation to be operated in the residence located at 4755 

Liberty Park Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Mr. and Ms. York have indicated in their application for conditional 

use approval that they will operate a consulting business out of their home pursuant to the 

specifications of a home occupation; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated March 27, 2015 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2571. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Timothy and Robin York 

for a home occupation as described in the above-referenced application for 

their residence located at 4755 Liberty Park Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

located in Liberty Park P.U.D. subject to the provisions in Article 9 of the 

Vestavia Hills Zoning Code outlined as follows: 

(1) “Home occupation is defined as any use customarily conducted entirely 

within a dwelling and carried on solely by the inhabitant thereof, and 

which use is clearly incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary to 

the use of the dwelling for dwelling purposes, and does not change the 

29



Ordinance Number 2571 
Page 2 

 
character of the dwelling itself or any part of parcel of property in the 

neighborhood surrounding said dwelling. 

(2) Home occupations shall be conducted only in the main dwelling building 

on the lot.  No more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the said dwelling 

may be used for a home occupation. 

(3) There shall be no public display of goods and absolutely no commodities 

sold on the premises; no customer, client or employee traffic to, at or near 

the residence that is generated, directly or indirectly, by said home 

occupation.  There shall be no pickup or deliveries to the residences that 

are related to said home occupation whether directly or indirectly. 

(4) No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 

advertising any home occupation. 

(5) No home occupation or profession shall be permitted if such occupation 

creates noise, odors, vibrations or traffic which interferes with the 

residential qualities of the neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, 

convenience and general welfare are concerned. 

(6) In order to be a permitted home occupation or profession, the use must be 

one which is habitually, customarily and commonly established as a 

reasonable incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary use. 

(7) Operation of any and all other business of any nature in residential zones 

is expressly prohibited; and 

(8) The activity carried on as home occupation shall be limited to the hours 

between 7:00 AM and 10:00 PM.” 

2. Conditional Use Approval is further conditioned upon and subject to all 

applicable private and restrictive covenants attached to the property located at 

4755 Liberty Park Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park 

P.U.D. 

3. A City of Vestavia Hills Business License shall be issued upon application 

and payment by Mr. and Mrs. York working to the rules and regulations 

outlined in the Vestavia Hills Business License Code and shall be renewed 

30



Ordinance Number 2571 
Page 3 

 
each year that the home occupation is operated from the location at 4755 

Liberty Park Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

4. At any time should Mr. and Ms. York vacate the premises located at 4755 

Liberty Park Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, discontinue or relocate her 

business, this conditional use approval shall be nullified and said Ordinance 

Number 2571 shall be automatically repealed. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2571 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of June, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

31



32



33



34



35



36



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     May 4, 2015 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0515-21 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for a home based business  

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4755 Liberty Park Lane, Lot 878 Heritage Hills, Phase 1. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Timothy and Robin York, 4755 Liberty Park Lane, 

Vestavia Hills, AL  35242 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant wishes to conduct a home based 
consulting business in Liberty Park. As required by the Liberty Park PUD a 
conditional use permit is required for a home based business. Applicant indicates that 
only paperwork be done at the residence. Liberty Park has submitted four requested 
conditions: 

 
1. There shall be no customers, client or employee traffic to, at or near the 
residence that is generated, directly or indirectly, by the home occupation; 
2. There shall be no pick-ups or deliveries to the residence that are related, 
directly or indirectly, to the home occupation, including without limitation, pick-
ups and deliveries by overnight courier services and pick-ups and deliveries of 
inventory, samples or other goods and services related, directly or indirectly, to 
the home occupation; 
3. There shall be no signage on the property related, directly or indirectly, to 
the home occupation; and 
4. In all respects, there shall be no means, visual or otherwise, by which a 
casual observer would become aware that the residence is being used for any 
purpose other than strictly residential. 

 
       The property is zoned PR-1. 
 

• LIBERTY PARK MASTER PLAN:  This request is consistent with the procedures 
of the Liberty Park PUD. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 

37



to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission recommend 
approval with the conditions requested by Liberty Park.  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request 
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
 
MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use Approval 
for a home office at 4755 Liberty Park Lane. with the following conditions: 

1. There shall be no customers, client or employee traffic to, at or near the residence that is 
generated, directly or indirectly, by the home occupation; 

2. There shall be no pick-ups or deliveries to the residence that are related, directly or 
indirectly, to the home occupation, including without limitation, pick-ups and deliveries 
by overnight courier services and pick-ups and deliveries of inventory, samples or other 
goods and services related, directly or indirectly, to the home occupation; 

3. There shall be no signage on the property related, directly or indirectly, to the home 
occupation; and 

4. In all respects, there shall be no means, visual or otherwise, by which a casual observer 
would become aware that the residence is being used for any purpose other than strictly 
residential. 

Second was by Mr. Goodwin. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Brooks – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes  
 Mr. House – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes 

Mr. Visintainer – yes   Mr. Goodwin – yes   
 Mr. Sharp – yes    Mr. Larson – yes   
 Motion carried. 

 
 

38



Ordinance Number 2572 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2572 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR AUTOMOTIVE SALES, FOR 1475 MONTGOMERY 
HIGHWAY 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City 

of Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, Michael Schefano, Hollywood Imports is the owner of the property 

located at 1475 Montgomery Highway zoned Vestavia Hills B-3 (business district); and 

 WHEREAS, Michael Schefano, Hollywood Imports has presented an application 

for Conditional Use Approval for the purpose of automotive sales for the property located 

at 1475 Montgomery Highway pursuant to Table 6 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; 

and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use approval is hereby granted for automotive sales for property 

located at 1475 Montgomery Highway; and 

2. Said conditional use shall continue in perpetuity pursuant to the Zoning Code 

until such time as use ceases to exist on said property for a period of one year; 

and 

3. This Ordinance Number 2572 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law; and 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of June, 

2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 

39



Ordinance Number 2572 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2572 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of June, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



41



42



43



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     May 4, 2015 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0515-23 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Request of Conditional Use Approval for a vehicle 

dealership 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1475 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Michael Schefano, Hollywood Imports 

 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:  Michael Schefano, Hollywood Imports 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is located on Montgomery Highway adjacent 

to NAPA Auto Parts and Captain D’s.  Property has secured storage for vehicles in 
the rear of a small office and narrows to the front.  Vehicles are parked so as to allow 
ingress/egress of a small amount of traffic.  Customers are not shown vehicles on said 
lot, vehicles are taken to primary lot for viewing and/or financing.  Planned use for 
the immediate future is to only store the surplus vehicle inventory on the lot, 
however, Hollywood Imports is in flooding area and this property would be ideal to 
move temporary operations to if flooding should occur of the dealership continues to 
grow. 

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  This property is located in Figure 18 

of the Comprehensive Master Plan in an area designated as Commercial Core.  This 
request is consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning 
classification with the conditional use.   

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No Recommendation. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application find no problems. 
 

44



3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and found no 
problems as proposed. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and found no 

problems as proposed.  
 

MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use 
Approval Operation Of A Vehicle Dealership For The Property Located At 1475 Montgomery 
Highway with the following conditions: 

1. The owner must receive a certificate of occupancy from the Building Safety Department; 
2. Business must adhere to all ADA and building requirements; and 
3. Business must obtain permits for sign and adhere to the sign ordinance. 

Second was by Mr. Wolfe. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Brooks – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes  
 Mr. House – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes 

Mr. Visintainer – yes   Mr. Goodwin – yes   
 Mr. Sharp – yes    Mr. Larson – yes   
 Motion carried. 

 
 

45



  

46



Resolution Number 4726 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4726 
 

 A RESOLUTION DECLARING A WEED AND 

OTHER VEGETATION NUISANCE PURSUANT TO 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2567 AND DIRECTING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE 

 

 WHEREAS, ON May 11, 2015, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2567 to establish a procedure for the 

abatement of grass and weeds and for the prosecution and abatement of grass and weed 

violations; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Compliance Officer has made a “First Demand” on the 

property located at 2130 Cedarbark Lane; a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A,” 

attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4726 as if written fully therein; 

and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted at the regularly scheduled City 

Council meeting of June 22, 2015 at 5:00 PM in which the facts of the matter were 

discussed; and  

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

declare the property a nuisance and direct the City Manager to abate said nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions set forth in Ordinance Number 2567; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. The property located at 2130 Cedarbark Lane is hereby declared a nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance Number 2567 and the City Manager is 

hereby authorized to abate said nuisance pursuant to the terms and provisions of 

said ordinance. 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption. 

47



Resolution Number 4726 

Page 2 

 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22
nd

 day of June, 2015. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

48



49

WAppling
Typewritten Text
"Exhibit A"



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



Resolution Number 4729 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4729 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 

TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH ALDOT FOR 

JEFFERSON COUNTY PROJECT NUMBER:  ACAA59495-ATRP(006); 

RESURFACING VARIOUS ELIGIBLE ROADS/STREETS IN 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (hereinafter at times referred to as 

City) is desirous of having certain improvements made within the City Limits of Vestavia Hills, 

in accordance with plans prepared by the Alabama Department of Transportation and designated 

as Project Number: Resurface CR-113 (Rocky Ridge Road) from Lorna Road to CR-97 (Shades Crest 

Road) – Plane, Resurface and Traffic Stripe Various Eligible Roads/Streets in Jefferson County. 

Resurface CR-113 (Rocky Ridge Road) from Lorna Road to CR-97 (Shades Crest 

Road) 

WHEREAS, The Alabama Department of Transportation is now or may later be desirous 

of receiving Federal Aid for improvement of said highway; and  

 WHEREAS, The Federal Highway Administration, an agency of the United States of 

America, will not participate in any funding for the construction of said project until and unless 

the City will agree to certain requirements of the Federal Highway Administration.  The City for 

the purpose of complying with requirements of the Federal Highway Administration in regard to 

its funding of improvements of the type and kind in this agreement provided for, does hereby 

pass and adopt the following resolution: 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Vestavia Hills that the plans of said project 

including alignment, profile, grades, typical sections and paving layouts as submitted to this City 

and which are now on file in the office of the City Clerk are hereby approved and that the 

location of said project as staked out by the Alabama Department of Transportation and as 

shown by said plans referred to are hereby approved and the Alabama Department of 

Transportation, in cooperation with the Federal Highway Administration, is hereby authorized to 

proceed with the grading, draining, paving, and otherwise improving and construction of said 

project in accordance with said plans.  The City by and through its Council hereby grants to the 

Alabama Department of Transportation the full use of and access to the dedicated widths of any 

existing streets for the construction of said project and hereby agrees to permit and allow the 

Alabama Department of Transportation to close and barricade the said project and intersecting 

72



Resolution Number 4729 

Page 2 

 

streets for as long as necessary while the said project is being graded, drained, paved, and 

otherwise improved, and hereby agrees that the use of any street or highway for parking within 

an interchange area will not at any time be permitted.  The City hereby further agrees to adopt or 

pass such legally effective ordinances and/or laws as will permanently barricade and/or relocate 

certain intersecting streets as required by the State and to permanently deny or limit access at 

certain locations as required by the State along said improvements, all of which are more 

specifically stated as follows:  

N/A- This project does not require permanent barricade or relocation of any intersection 

streets.   

Please refer to:  Project Notes (Sheet 2E) 

Please refer to:  Traffic Control Plan Notes (Sheet 2F) 

Please refer to:  Traffic Signal Plan Notes (Sheet 2G) 

Please refer to:  Sequence of Construction and Traffic Control Plan (Sheets 11-14) 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council, that for and in consideration of the 

Alabama Department of Transportation in cooperation with the Federal Highway 

Administration, constructing said highway and routing traffic along the same through the City 

over said project, such City hereby agrees with the Alabama Department of Transportation and 

for the benefit of the Federal Highway Administration, that on the above-mentioned project the 

City will not in the future permit encroachments upon the right-of-way;  nor will it pass any 

ordinances or laws fixing a speed limit contrary to those limits provided for in Title 32, Chapter 

5, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended, and other laws of Alabama; nor will it permit other than 

parallel parking in areas where parking is permitted; nor will it allow the placing of any 

informational, regulatory, or warning signs, signals, median crossover, curb and pavement or 

other markings, and traffic signals without written approval of the Alabama Department of 

Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration, of the location, form and character of 

such installations.  The traffic control devices and signs installed during construction, and those 

installed after completion of this project shall be in accordance with the latest edition of the 

national Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and accepted standards adopted by the 

Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama and by the Federal Highway 

Administration.  The City further agrees that subsequent traffic control devices deemed 

necessary by it in keeping with applicable statutes, rules and regulations to promote the safe and 

73



Resolution Number 4729 

Page 3 

 

efficient utilization of the highway under the authority of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 

1975, and all other applicable laws of Alabama, shall be subject to and must have the approval of 

the Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama and of the Federal Highway 

Administration, prior to installation and the City further agrees that it will enforce traffic and 

control the same under the provisions of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, and other 

applicable laws of Alabama. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by this City Council: 

1. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on crossroads, service drives, or 

relocated roads that are not designated Federal or State highways that are in the 

jurisdiction of the City. 

2. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on any existing road which has been 

replaced by a new road; or, if the existing road is not used, the City has the option of 

vacating same. 

3. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on interchanges to the theoretical 

crossing of the denied access line. 

4. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on grade separations along the 

roadway to the end of the bridge, or the denied access fence, whichever the case. 

It is understood and agreed that no changes in the Resolution or Agreement shall in the 

future be made without having obtained the prior approval of the Federal Highway 

Administration. 

This Resolution PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22
nd

 day of June, 

2015. 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

74



Resolution Number 4729 

Page 4 

 

      APPROVED BY: 

 

 

 

 

      Jeffrey D. Downes,  

      City Manager 

 

 

 I, the undersigned, Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, do hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and lawfully adopted by the 

Council of the foregoing City, at its regular meeting held on the 22
nd

 day of June, 2015 which 

resolution is on fiale in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal of such City of Vestavia Hills this ________ day 

of ___________________ 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

75



Resolution No. 4728 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4728 

 

A RESOLUTION TO REJECT THE SOLE BID SUBMITTED FOR THE 

CAHABA HEIGHTS ELEMENTARY ROAD PROJECT (“CHERP”) ON 

THE BASIS THAT THE BID PRICE SUBMITTED FAR EXCEEDS THE 

MAXIMUM BUDGETED PRICE ESTABLISHED BY THE CITY WHEN 

IT PLANNED CHERP; TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY PURSUANT 

TO THE AUTHORITY OF TITLE 39-2-2(e), CODE OF ALABAMA, 1975; 

TO DESCRIBE THE NATURE OF THE EMERGENCY; TO 

AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE CONSTRUCTION OF ONLY A 

PORTION OF A PUBLIC ROAD EXTENDING A LENGTH OF 

APPROXIMATELY THREE HUNDRED FEET (300’) AT A COST NOT 

TO EXCEED FOUR HUNDRED EIGHTY-NINE THOUSAND SEVEN 

HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($489,750.00) FOR CONSTRUCTION AND 

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND TO PAY SAID COST UTILIZING PUBLIC 

FUNDS PRESENTLY ON DEPOSIT IN THE CAPITAL PROJECT 

FUND; TO AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE NEGOTIATION OF A 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT; TO AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT; 

AND TO ADOPT TWO LEGAL OPINIONS AS PART OF THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

THIS RESOLUTION NUMBER 4728 is approved and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 22
nd

 day of June, 2015. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, municipalities in the State of Alabama are authorized to spend public 

funds for the purpose of constructing public streets and roads pursuant to the authority of Title 

11-48-4, Code of Alabama, 1975; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) has decided that it would 

benefit and be in the best interests of the public to construct a public road in the Cahaba 

Heights neighborhood of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama with a portion of that public road 

being adjacent to Vestavia Hills Cahaba Heights Elementary School owned and operated by the 

Board of Education of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, the name of the project is “Cahaba Heights Elementary Road Project” 

(“CHERP”); and 

WHEREAS, the City established a budget for CHERP estimated to be an amount 

between Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) and Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand 

Dollars ($750,000.00); and 

76



Resolution No. 4728 

Page 2 

 

WHEREAS, the City advertised for and invited competitive bids for CHERP as 

required by the Alabama Public Works Competitive Bid Law at Title 39-2-2(a), Code of 

Alabama, 1975; and 

WHEREAS, the City, based upon the fact that it expected to receive no more than one 

bid for the project, requested the City Attorney to provide a written legal opinion regarding 

legal options available to the City should the City receive no bids, only one bid or if the only 

bid received is at an unreasonable price; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of the written legal opinion of the City Attorney, dated June 3, 

2015, is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 1 and is incorporated into this resolution by 

reference as though set out fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Bid Opening was scheduled for and held at 10:00 a.m. on June 10, 

2015 at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center; and 

WHEREAS, Veterans Landscaping Company, Inc. was the sole bidder and submitted a 

base bid in the amount of Nine Hundred Sixty-seven Thousand Forty and 71/100 Dollars 

($967,040.71) with Bid Alternate No. 1 in the amount of Three Hundred Seventeen Thousand 

Two Hundred Eighty-eight and 51/100 Dollars ($317,288.51) for a total of One Million Two 

Hundred Eighty-four Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-nine and 22/100 Dollars 

($1,284,329.22); and 

WHEREAS, the bid price submitted by Veterans Landscaping Company, Inc. far 

exceeds the maximum budgeted amount established by the City when it planned CHERP; and 

WHEREAS, the last day for Vestavia Hills students for the 2014/2015 school year was 

May 21, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the first day for Vestavia Hills school system teachers for the 2015/2016 

school year is August 10, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the City Attorney was requested to write a second legal opinion as to 

whether or not the City may negotiate and award a contract for the construction of only a 

portion of a public road pursuant to the emergency provisions of Title 39-2-2(e), Code of 

Alabama, 1975, and/or the “only one bid” provisions of Title 39-2-6(b), Code of Alabama, 

1975; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of the second legal opinion written by the City Attorney, dated June 

18, 2015, is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 2 and is incorporated into this resolution by 

reference as though set out fully herein. 

77



Resolution No. 4728 

Page 3 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. WRITTEN LEGAL OPINION, DATED JUNE 3, 2015, BY CITY ATTORNEY:  A copy 

of the legal opinion, dated June 3, 2015, written by the City Attorney is attached hereto, marked 

as Exhibit 1 and is incorporated into this resolution by reference as though set out full herein. 

2. WRITTEN LEGAL OPINION, DATED JUNE 18, 2015, BY CITY ATTORNEY:  A 

copy of the legal opinion, dated June 18, 2015, written by the City Attorney is attached hereto, 

marked as Exhibit 2 and is incorporated into this resolution by reference as though set out full 

herein. 

3. THE BID PRICE IS UNREASONABLE:  On June 10, 2015, Veterans Landscaping 

Company, Inc. submitted the sole bid for CHERP, which included a base price in the amount of 

$967,040.71 with a Bid Alternate No. 1 in the amount of $317,288.51.  The City finds and 

determines that said bid price is unreasonable (as authorized by Title 39-2-2(a), Code of 

Alabama, 1975) due to the fact that it far exceeds the maximum amount budgeted by the City 

when it planned CHERP. 

4. THE SOLE BID IS REJECTED:  The sole bid submitted to the City on June 10, 

2015 by Veterans Landscaping Company, Inc. in the base price in the amount of $967,040.71 

along with a Bid Alternate No. 1 in the amount of $317,288.51 for CHERP is hereby rejected.  

5. CONSTRUCTION OF PORTION OF PUBLIC STREET:  The Cahaba Heights 

Elementary Road Project provides for the construction of a public road that extends for 

approximately eight hundred fifty feet (850’).  This resolution authorizes the construction of 

only a portion of that public road to extend approximately three hundred feet (300’) (“the 

project”). 

6. SCHOOL YEAR 2015/2016:  The 2015/2016 school year for the Vestavia Hills 

school system begins for teachers on August 10, 2015.  The City Council finds and determines 

that the portion of the public road described in section 5 above must be completed prior to that 

date.  Therefore, time is of the essence. 

7. EMERGENCY DECLARED:  The City Council finds, determines and declares that 

the situation involving the construction of a portion of the public road adjacent to a public 

elementary school is, in fact, an emergency situation based upon Title 39-2-2(e), Code of 

Alabama, 1975. 

  

78



Resolution No. 4728 

Page 4 

 

8. NATURE OF THE EMERGENCY:  The advertisement seeking additional 

competitive bids pursuant to the Public Works Law Competitive Bid process set forth in Title 

39-2-2(b), Code of Alabama, 1975, would delay this public road construction project.  If the 

construction project were delayed, then in such event the construction project could not be 

completed prior to August 10, 2015 when school starts for teachers.  The City Council finds 

and determines that the construction of a public road adjacent to a public elementary school 

when school is in session would present dangers to the public health, safety (possible property 

damages and/or personal injuries to members of the general public) or public convenience.  The 

City Council further finds and determines that to delay said construction project would not 

promote the public health, safety and welfare of the students, parents, motorists and other 

members of the general public. 

9. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A PORTION OF THE 

PUBLIC ROAD:  The City Engineer has prepared plans and specifications for the construction of 

a portion of the public road (“project”), which extends for a distance of approximately three 

hundred feet (300’).  A copy of the drawing of that public road is attached hereto, marked as 

Exhibit 3 and is incorporated into this resolution by reference as though set out fully herein. 

10. COST OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF A PORTION OF THE PUBLIC ROAD:  The City 

Engineer has estimated that the cost for constructing the portion of the public road described in 

Exhibit 3 will not exceed the sum of Four Hundred Eighty-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred 

Fifty Dollars ($489,750.00) consisting of the following costs: 

 Construction Costs:      $326,100  not to exceed 

 Professional Services 

  Construction engineering and inspection, Sain      60,000 not to exceed 

  Construction stakeout and engineering control, Sain     10,000 not to exceed 

  Construction material testing, tbd       29,400 (estimated) 

           not to exceed 

  Easement legal descriptions and survey plat, Sain       9,250 not to exceed 

Utility relocation 

  Alabama Power relocation agreement       55,000 not to exceed 

 

11. NEGOTIATION OF CONTRACT:  The City Manager is hereby authorized and 

directed to negotiate a contract for construction of a portion of a public road as described herein 

pursuant to the two legal opinions written by the City Attorney designated as Exhibits 1 and 2. 

  

79



Resolution No. 4728 

Page 5 

 

12. PROPOSAL:  __________________________________________________ has 

submitted a proposal offering to construct a portion of the public road designed by the City 

Engineer and shown on Exhibit 3 for and in consideration of 

______________________________________________________________________ Dollars 

($___________) and is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 4 and incorporated into this 

resolution by reference as though set out fully herein. 

13. EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF CONTRACT:  The City Attorney has prepared 

and submitted a proposed Contract for this public road construction project.  A copy of said 

Contract is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 5 and is incorporated into this resolution by 

reference as though set out fully herein.  The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized 

and directed to execute and deliver the Contract for and on behalf of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama. 

14. PAYMENT OF CONTRACT PRICE:  The City Manager is hereby authorized and 

directed to pay the contract price not to exceed the sum of Three Hundred Twenty-six 

Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($326,100.00) upon completion of the work by using funds 

presently on deposit in the Capital Projects Fund of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama.  In 

addition, the City Manager is authorized and directed to pay the professional fees and other 

costs outlined in section 10 above by utilizing funds in the Capital Projects Fund. 

15. RELIANCE UPON LEGAL ADVICE GIVEN BY CITY ATTORNEY:  The City 

Council hereby approves and adopts this resolution in reliance upon the legal advice that the 

City may award, execute and deliver the Contract for construction of a portion of a public road 

without advertising for competitive bids pursuant to the emergency provisions (Title 39-2-2(e), 

Code of Alabama, 1975, and “only one bid” provisions (Title 39-2-6-(b), Code of Alabama, 

1975) of the Public Works Competitive Bid Law submitted to the City by the City Attorney in 

Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2. 

16. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE:  If any part, section or subdivision of this resolution 

shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this resolution, which shall continue in full force and 

effect notwithstanding such holding. 

17. ARTICLE AND SECTIONS HEADINGS:  The article and section headings and 

captions contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not be considered a part 

hereof or affect in any manner the construction or interpretation hereof. 

80



Resolution No. 4728 

Page 6 

 

18. EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Resolution Number 4728 shall become effective 

immediately upon adoption. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22
nd

 day of June, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Mayor 

ATTESTED BY 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

  

81



Resolution No. 4728 

Page 7 

 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

 

I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and legally 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22
nd

 day of June, 

2015 while in regular session, and the same appears of record in the minute book of said date of 

said City. 

 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____ day of June, 2015. 

 

            

      _______________________________________ 

       Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

                  

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

                  

 WITNESS THIS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT, made and entered into on this the 

_______ day of _________________, 2015, by and between The City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, a municipal corporation, located at 513 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama 35216 (hereinafter referred to as the “City”), and 

__________________________________________,  with its principal place of business located 

at ________________________________________________________________, (hereinafter 

referred to as “Contractor”). 

 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has decided to construct a public road in the Cahaba Heights 

neighborhood adjacent to Vestavia Hills Cahaba Heights Elementary School in the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the scope of the work constitutes a “public works project” within the 

meaning of Act Number 97-225 enacted by the Legislature, effective April 22, 1997 and now 

codified as Title 39-2-1(b)(1), et seq., Code of Alabama, 1975, and is more particularly described 

in the plans and specifications prepared by the City, a copy of which is attached hereto, marked 

as Exhibit A and incorporated into this contract by reference as though set out fully herein; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted a proposal for the construction of said public road, 

a copy of which is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit B and incorporated into this contract by 

reference as though set out fully herein; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has negotiated the proposal of the Contractor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Contractor have agreed that it is in the best interests of the 

parties that this Construction Contract be reduced to writing. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  That in 

consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and premises contained herein and other good 

and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by each of the parties 

hereto, the City and the Contractor expressly and mutually agree as follows: 

 

I. CONTRACTOR 

 

 __________________________________________ represents, covenants, and warrants 

that it is a Contractor within the meaning of Title 34-8-1, Code of Alabama, 1975.  Said 

Contractor further represents that is duly licensed and qualified to furnish the materials and 

supplies and perform the work of the public works project. 

 

97



Contract 

page 2 

 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

 The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, taxes and insurance (worker’s 

compensation and general liability) as follows: 

 

 The scope of the work is described in the plans and specifications prepared by the City, a 

copy of which is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit A and is incorporated into this Contract by 

reference as though set out fully herein. 

 

III. CONTRACT PRICE 

 

 As consideration of this contract, the City agrees to pay to the Contractor for the faithful 

performance of this contract, the sum of 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Dollars ($______________). 

 

IV. PAYMENT OF CONTRACT PRICE 

 

 The City shall pay the contract price in full upon completion of the work described in 

paragraph II hereof, which shall be no later than forty-two (42) days after both parties have 

signed this contract; provided, however, that the work shall be completed no later than August 7, 

2015. 

 

V. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

 

 The Contractor will make additional improvements and will perform additional work as 

requested by the City; provided, however, that the cost of said additional  improvements and 

work be negotiated by and between the City and the Contractor and mutually agreed upon by and 

between the parties in writing. 

 

VI. TERM OF CONTRACT 

 

 Time is of the essence of the performance of this contract. The term of this contract shall 

be for a period of forty-two (42) days beginning on the date of the execution and delivery of this 

contract.  The Contractor shall complete the work to be performed under this contract no later 

than the forty-second (42
nd

) day following the signing of this contract by both parties signatory 

hereto; provided, however, that the work shall be completed no later than August 7, 2015. 

 

VII. QUALITY OF WORK 

 

 All labor, construction and installation of equipment, materials and supplies installed by 

Contractor in the performance of this contract shall be done in a workmanlike manner. 

98



Contract 

page 3 

 

 

VIII. LIABILITY INSURANCE 

 

 The Contractor shall carry Manufacturer's and Contractor’s General Comprehensive 

Liability and Public Liability Insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), per 

person, and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000,00), per occurrence, to cover and protect the City, 

its Mayor, City Manager, individual City Council members, servants, agents, employees or 

representatives, the Contractor and its subcontractors against claims or injury to or death of one 

or more than one person because of accidents which may occur or result from operations under 

the contract; such insurance shall cover the use of any and all equipment, including but not 

limited to machinery, tractors, rollers, mixers, motor vehicles and other related equipment 

necessary to perform the work and installations and embraced in this contract. 

 

 The Contractor shall carry, during the life of this contract, property damage insurance in 

the amount of not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) to protect it and its 

subcontractors from claims for property damage which might arise from the work performed 

under this contract. 

 

 Before commencing work, the Contractor shall submit evidence of the coverages required 

above to the City for review and approval. Such insurance shall be carried with financially 

responsible insurance companies, licensed in the state and approved by the City and shall be kept 

in full force and effect until the Contractor's work is accepted by the City.  Contracts of insurance 

(covering all operations under this contract) which expire before the Contractor's work is 

accepted by the City shall be renewed and evidence of such renewal shall be submitted to the 

City for its approval. 

 

IX. ADDITIONAL INSUREDS 

 

 The Contractor shall cause all of the insurance policy coverages described in Section VIII 

of the Contract above (except for the Worker's Compensation coverages) to include: 

 

 A. The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and its Mayor, City Manager, individual 

City Council members, servants, agents, employees or representatives as additional insureds for 

claims caused in whole or in part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the 

Contractor’s operations; and 

 

 B. The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and its Mayor, City Manager, individual 

City Council members, servants, agents, employees or representatives as additional insureds for 

claims caused in whole  or in part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the 

Contractor's completed operations; and 

 

 C. The insurance policy coverages shall state that these coverages shall be primary 

insurance for the additional insureds; and 

 

 D. Contain no exclusions of the additional insureds relative to job accidents; and 

 

99



Contract 

page 4 

 

 E. The policies must be on an “occurrence” basis. 

 

 F. In addition, the Contractor shall include the Board of Education of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, its Superintendent, individual members of the Board, servants, agents, 

representatives and employees as additional insureds on all of the insurance policies and to the 

extent provided in sections A, B, C, D and E hereof. 

 

X. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

 

 The Contractor shall carry Worker's Compensation insurance for all of its employees and 

those of its subcontractors engaged in the work at the site in accordance with the State of 

Alabama Worker's Compensation Law.  This insurance coverage provided by the Contractor 

under the Worker's Compensation Act shall provide protection from any and all claims for bodily 

injury, death or property damage, which may arise from the performance of any servant, agent, 

employee or other representative of Contractor or its subcontractors under this contract.  

Certificates of insurance issued by competent insurance companies qualified and licensed to do 

business in the State of Alabama and approved by the City evidencing that all of said 

subcontractors of the Contractor are covered by said Worker's Compensation insurance coverage 

and furnished to the Contractor and the City by the individual subcontractors shall meet the 

requirements of this section. 

 

XI. INDEMNITY 

 

 A. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City, its Mayor, City 

Manager, individual City Council members, servants, agents, employees and representatives 

from any and all claims, demands, controversies, actions, causes of action, liabilities of action, 

lawsuits, liabilities, damages and losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorney fees, 

arising out of or resulting from property damage, personal injury and/or death suffered or alleged 

to have been suffered by any person as a result for work performed under this contract by 

Contractor, a subcontractor and anyone directly or indirectly employed by them.  This 

indemnification shall extend to all claims, damages, losses and expenses for injury or damage to 

adjacent or neighboring property, or persons injured thereon, that arise out of, relate to or result 

from performance of the Work. 

 

 B. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the Board of Education of the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, its Superintendent, individual members of the Board, servants, 

agents, representatives and employees from any and all claims, demands, controversies, actions, 

causes of action, liabilities of action, lawsuits, liabilities, damages and losses and expenses, 

including but not limited to attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from property damage, 

personal injury and/or death suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any person as a result 

for work performed under this contract by Contractor, a subcontractor and anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by them.  This indemnification shall extend to all claims, damages, losses 

and expenses for injury or damage to adjacent or neighboring property, or persons injured 

thereon, that arise out of, relate to or result from performance of the Work. 

100



Contract 

page 5 

 

 

XII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

 The Contractor, __________________________________________, is an independent 

contractor for purposes of this contract.  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to mean 

that said Contractor is the servant, agent or employee of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 

XIII. ASSIGNMENT 

 

 This contract shall not be assignable by the Contractor in any respect without having first 

obtained the written consent of the City of Vestavia Hills evidenced by a properly enacted 

resolution of the City Council. 

 

XIV. PERMITS, LAWS, CODES AND ORDINANCES 

 

 The Contractor shall give all notices required by and comply with all applicable laws, 

ordinances and codes of the local, state and federal governments regarding the performance of 

the work described in this contract. 

 

XV. EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES 

 

 Before any work is done in the vicinity of an existing underground utility line, the 

Contractor shall check with the owner of the utility lines to determine and verify its exact 

location.  The Contractor shall be held liable for any damage to utilities in the execution of this 

Contract. 

 

XVI. BONDS 

 

 In accordance with Title 39-1-1, Code of Alabama, 1975, the Contractor agrees to execute 

a performance bond with penalty equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the amount of the 

Contract price ($_______________), and in addition thereto, another bond with good and 

sufficient surety payable to the City  in an amount not less than (50%) of the contract price 

($_______________) with the obligation that such Contractor shall promptly make payments to 

all persons supplying it with the labor, materials, equipment or supplies for and in the 

prosecution of the work provided  for in this Contract and for the payment of reasonable 

attorney's fees incurred by successful claimants or plaintiffs in civil actions on said bond. 

 

 A copy of the said performance bond shall be marked as Exhibit "C", attached hereto and 

incorporated and made a part of the contract as though set out fully herein.  A copy of the labor 

and material bond shall be designed as Exhibit "D" attached hereto and incorporated and made a 

part of this contract as though set out fully herein. 

101



Contract 

page 6 

 

 

XVII. ACCIDENT PREVENTION 

 

 The Contractor shall exercise proper precaution at all times for the protection of persons 

and property and shall be responsible for all damages to person or property, either on or off the 

site, which occur as a result of its prosecution of the work.  The safety provisions of applicable 

laws and building and construction codes shall be observed. Machinery, equipment and all 

hazards shall be guarded in accordance with the safety provisions of the "Manual of Accident 

Prevention in Construction" published by the Associated Contractors of America, Inc., to the 

extent that such provisions are not in conflict with applicable local laws.  If the Contractor 

performs work on school days during school hours, then in such event the work shall be done in 

such a way that it does not disrupt classes, school activities, endanger students or damage school 

property. 

 

XVIII. SUBCONTRACTORS 

 

 No proposed subcontractor shall be disapproved by the City, except for cause. 

 

 The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the City for the acts and omissions of its 

subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by said subcontractors, as it 

is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by it. 

 

 The Contractor shall cause appropriate provision to be inserted in all subcontracts relative 

to the work to require compliance by each subcontractor with the applicable provisions of the 

Contract for the improvements embraced in the project. 

 

 Nothing contained in the Contact shall create any contractual relations between any 

subcontractor and the City. 

 

 The Contractor shall pay all subcontractors for materials and supplies installed in this 

project by said subcontractors and all work and labor performed by said subcontractors on said 

project. 

 

XIX. CHANGES IN WORK 

 

 The City may make changes in the scope of the work required to be performed by the 

Contractor under the Contract by eliminating any portion of the work and the corresponding unit 

price charged therefore. Any change order for additional work shall be done by mutual agreement 

and in writing.  Any change order for deletion of work shall be in writing given by City to the 

Contractor. No change order shall relieve or release the Contractor from any of its obligations 

under the contract or any guarantee given by it pursuant to the Contract  provisions, and shall not 

affect the validity of the guarantee bonds. 

102



Contract 

page 7 

 

 

XX. INSPECTION 

 

 All materials and workmanship shall be subject to inspection, examination or test by the 

City at any and all times during manufacture or construction and at any and all places where such 

manufacture or construction is carried on.  The City shall have the right to reject defective 

materials and defective, incorrect or incomplete work and/or require its correction.  Unacceptable 

workmanship shall be satisfactorily corrected.  Rejected material shall be promptly segregated 

and removed from the project area and be replaced with material of specified quality without 

charge therefore.  If the Contractor fails to proceed at once with the correction of rejected 

workmanship or defective material, the City may contract for or otherwise have the defects 

remedied or rejected materials removed from the project area and charge the cost of the same 

against any moneys which may be due the Contractor, without prejudice to any other rights or 

remedies of the City. 

 

XXI. TERMINATION 

 

 The Contract, of which statement of work described in paragraph II hereof form a part, 

may be terminated by the City for any one of the following reasons: 

 

 A. Substantial evidence that the progress made by the Contractor is insufficient to 

complete the work within the specified time. 

 

 B. Deliberate failure on the part of the Contractor to observe the requirements of this 

Contract. 

 

 C. Failure on the part of the Contractor to promptly make good any defects in 

materials or workmanship that may be indicated to it by the City. 

 

 D. Any other breach of contract by the Contractor. 

 

XXII. GENERAL GUARANTY BY CONTRACTOR 

 

 Neither the final certificate of payment nor any provision in the Contract nor partial or 

entire use of the improvements embraced in this Contract by the City or the public shall 

constitute an acceptance of work not done in accordance with the Contract or relieve the 

Contractor of liability in respect to any express warranties of responsibility for faulty materials or 

workmanship.  The Contractor shall promptly remedy any defects in the work and pay for any 

damage to other work resulting therefrom which shall appear within a period of twelve (12) 

months from the date of final acceptance of the work.  The City will give notice of defective 

material and work with reasonable promptness.  The Contractor shall deliver to the City any and 

all written warranties guaranteed by the manufacturers of any of the materials installed in said 

road at the completion of the work. 

103



Contract 

page 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XXIII. REMOVAL OF DEBRIS AND CLEANING 

 

 The Contractor shall, periodically or as directed during the progress of the work, remove 

and legally dispose of all surplus excavated material and debris, and keep the Project Area and 

public rights of way reasonable clear.  Upon completion of the work, it shall remove all 

temporary construction facilities, debris and unused materials provided for the work, and put the 

whole site of the work and public rights of way in a neat and clean condition.  Trash burning on 

the site of the work will be subject to the approval of the City and existing state and local 

regulations. 

 

XXIV. IMMIGRATION LAW 

 

 A. The Contractor represents and warrants that it does not knowingly employ, hire 

for employment, or continue to employ, in Alabama, an “unauthorized alien,” as defined by the 

Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, §31-13-1, et seq., Code of 

Alabama 1975, as amended (the “Act”).  

 

 B. The Contractor represents and warrants that it will enroll in the E-Verify program 

prior to performing any work on the project in Alabama and shall provide documentation 

establishing that the Contractor is enrolled in the E-Verify program.  During the performance of 

this contract, the Contractor shall participate in the E-Verify program as required under the terms 

of the Act and shall verify every employee in Alabama that is required to be verified according to 

the applicable federal rules and regulations.  

 

 C. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of the Act with 

respect to its subcontractors by entering into an agreement with or by obtaining an affidavit from 

such subcontractors providing work for the Contractor on the Project in Alabama, that such 

subcontractors are in compliance with the Act with respect to their participation in the E-verify 

program.  The Contractor represents and warrants that it shall not hire, retain or contract with any 

subcontractor to work on the Project in Alabama which the Contractor knows is not in 

compliance with the Act. 

 

 D. By signing this Contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the 

contract, that they will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for 

employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. 

Furthermore a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in 

breach of the contract and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom. 

104



Contract 

page 9 

 

 

XXV. MISCELLANEOUS 

 

 A. NON WAIVER:  The failure of the City to insist, in any one or more instances, 

upon a strict performance of any of the covenants of this contract, or to exercise any option 

herein contained, shall not be construed as a waiver, or a relinquishment for the future of such 

covenant or option, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and effect. 

 

 B. WAIVER OF MODIFICATION:  Any waiver, alteration or modification of any of the 

provisions of this Contract or cancellation or replacement of this contract shall not be valid 

unless in writing and signed by the City and Contractor.  This contract may be amended at any 

time by written agreement of the parties signatory hereto.  No claims for any extra work or 

materials shall be allowed unless covered by written agreement of the parties. 

 

 C. NOTICES:  Any and all notices required or permitted to be given under this 

contract will be sufficient if furnished in writing and sent by Registered Mail to the parties’ last 

known address. 

 

 D. GOVERNING LAW:  This contract shall be interpreted, construed and governed to 

the laws of the State of Alabama.  The jurisdiction and venue for the resolution of any dispute 

shall be in Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 

 E. CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS:  The City and Contractor negotiated the terms, 

provisions and conditions of this contract and both parties had the equal opportunity for input for 

the drafting of this contract.  Therefore, any ambiguities of this contract shall be construed fairly 

and equitably regardless of the participation of either party in drafting this contract.  The 

reference in terms to gender and number shall be modified as may be appropriate. 

 

 F. ARTICLE AND SECTION HEADINGS:  The article and section headings and 

captions contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not be considered a part 

hereof or affect in any manner the construction or interpretation hereof. 

 

 G. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS:  The contract may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 

same instrument. 

 

 H. BINDING EFFECT:  The contract shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding 

upon City and Contractor, and their heirs, successors and assigns. 

 

 I. SEVERABILITY:  In the event any provision of this contract shall be held invalid or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 

unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

105



Contract 

page 10 

 

 

 J. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This written Construction Contract contains the entire 

agreement between the City and the Contractor. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Construction Contract on this 

the _______ day of _________________, 2015. 

 

      THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

                   

 

      By ____________________________________ 

       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

       Its Mayor 

 

      By ____________________________________ 

       Jeffrey D. Downes 

       Its City Manager 

 

ATTESTED: 

                  

 

By___________________________________ 

                  

       

      __________________________________________ 

      Contractor 

 

 

      By ____________________________________ 

       Its President 

 

 

ATTESTED: 

                  

 

By___________________________________ 

 

106



Contract 

page 11 

 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

                  

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

                  

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby 

certify that Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr., whose name as Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, a municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Construction Contract, and who is 

known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that being informed of the contents of the 

contract, he in his capacity as such and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and 

as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on the day the same bears date. 

                  

 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _______ day of _________________, 

2015. 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

____________________ 

SEAL 

 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

                  

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

                  

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby 

certify that Jeffrey D. Downes, whose name as City Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, a municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Construction Contract, and who is 

known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that being informed of the contents of the 

contract, he in his capacity as such and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and 

as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on the day the same bears date. 

                  

 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _______ day of _________________, 

2015. 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

____________________ 

SEAL 

 

107



Contract 

page 12 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

                  

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

                  

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby 

certify that _______________________, whose name as _____________________ of 

__________________________________________, an _________________ 

corporation/partnership/limited liability company, is signed to the foregoing Construction 

Contract, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that being informed of 

the contents of the contract, (s)he in his/her capacity as such and with full authority, executed the 

same voluntarily for and as the act of said __________________________________________ 

on the day the same bears date. 

                  

 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _______ day of _________________, 

2015. 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

____________________ 

SEAL 

 

108



109



110



111



112



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4725 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF RADIO 
EQUIPMENT BY UTILIZING E-911 FUNDS BY THE VESTAVIA HILLS 
CITY COUNCIL AS THE CITY’S EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS 
DISTRICT BOARD 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills maintains a special fund account for the City’s E-

911 funds; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as the governing 

body services as the City’s Emergency Communications District Board (“ECD Board”);  

 WHEREAS, as stated in the State of Alabama Attorney General Opinion Numbers 94-

00020 and 2010-019, the Alabama Attorney General has opined that the ECD Board may 

provide radio equipment for the purpose of transmitting and receiving dispatch calls purchased 

with E-911 funds; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager received a memorandum from the Fire Chief dated June 

15, 2015, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit A,” attached to and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4725 as though written fully therein which requests that the ECD Board take 

action to allow the purchasing of radio equipment as described above with E-911 funds; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the requested and corresponding 

documentation and has recommended that the ECD Board take action as requested by the Fire 

Chief. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Council as the ECD Board of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby authorizes the City Manager to purchase radio equipment from special E-911 

funds pursuant to Alabama Attorney General Opinion Numbers 94-00020 and 2010-019; 

and 

2. All purchases of equipment shall be made pursuant to existing or future special fund 

budget approvals or special approvals of the governing body; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4725 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 

113



Resolution Number 4725  
Page 2 

 
ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 13th day of July, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

114



VOLENS ET POTENS 
 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 
513 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 35216 
(205) 978-0225 

(205) 978-0205 (FAX) 
 
 

JAMES R. ST. JOHN 
FIRE CHIEF 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
 
FROM:  Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
 
DATE:  June 15, 2015 
 
RE:  Request to purchase radio equipment from E-911 funds 
 
 
I request that the City Council, as the ECD board, approve the expenditure of $12,008.00 from  
E-911 funds for the purchase of radio equipment. The purchase will include a radio and headset 
system for the new fire engine under construction and the relocation and installation of radio 
equipment to the new City Hall location.  
 
While this expenditure is not in the FY 2015 budget, it will not cause a negative fund balance 
through the end of the fiscal year. 

115



Resolution Number 4727 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4727 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE 

OF A DRYING CABINET AND WORKSTATION 

 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Police Department has analyzed the need for a 

drying cabinet and workstation; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Police Department has determined that there is a 

need for a drying cabinet and workstation designed to protect the technician and the 

environment from harmful bacteria, viruses, and odors associated with the drying and 

processing of evidence, as well as prevent cross contamination; and 

WHEREAS, the Police Department has requested that the expense for the drying 

cabinet and workstation of approximately $7,750.00 be charged to the Court Fund 

account; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the request and has recommended 

the acceptance of said purchase; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have concurred with the City Manager 

and feel it is in the best public interest to accept the request as presented and 

recommended by the City Manager.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase a drying cabinet and 

workstation designed to protect the technician and the environment in the amount 

not to exceed $7,750.00 to be expensed to the Court Fund account; and 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption. 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 13
th

 day of July, 2015. 

116



Resolution Number 4727 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

117



118



119


	2015_0622CC_A
	2015_0523CC_M ws
	2015_0608CC_M
	Resolution 4723
	Ordinance 2571
	Ordinance 2572
	Resolution 4726
	Resolution 4729
	Resolution 4728
	Resolution 4725
	Resolution 4727



